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O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges
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S H M COAL COMPANY
RESPONDENT No. 1 Surface M ne

DECI SI ONS

Appearances: Mary Sue Ray, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
U.S. Departnent of Labor, Nashville, Tennessee,
for the Petitioner;

John T. Aubrey, Esq., Aubrey and Bow i ng,
Manchester, Kentucky, for the Respondent.

Bef ore: Judge Koutras
St at enent of the Proceedings

These proceedi ngs concern proposals for assessment of civi
penalties filed by the petitioner against the respondent pursuant
to section 110(a) of the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of
1977, 30 U.S.C. O 820(a). In Docket No. KENT 88-159, the
petitioner seeks a civil penalty assessnent in the anount of
$400, for an alleged violation of mandatory new mi ner training
standard 30 CF.R 0O 48.25(a). In Docket No. KENT 88-104, the
petitioner seeks a civil penalty assessnment of $20, for an
al l eged violation of mandatory Notification of Legal Identity
standard 30 C.F.R [0 41.10, and a civil penalty assessnent of
$195 for an alleged violation of mandatory training standard 30
C.F.R [048.23(a)(3), for failing to file a mne training plan.

The respondent filed tinmely answers denying and contesting
the alleged violations, and it denied that it was operating a
coal mine subject to the jurisdiction of the Act at the tine the
citations were issued. A hearing was held in London, Kentucky,
and the parties were afforded an opportunity to file
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posthearing briefs. The petitioner filed a brief, but the
respondent did not. In addition to the briefs, | have considered
all of the oral argunent nmade by the parties during the hearing
in my adjudication of these matters.

| ssues

The principal issues presented in these proceedings is
whet her the respondent's alleged coal m ning operation
constitutes mning as defined by the Act, whether the alleged
m ning activity involved interstate comerce, and whether the
respondents, as independent contractors, are accountable for the
all eged mning activity conducted on the | and owned by sonmeone
el se, and whether they are chargeable for the owner's intent to
extract such coal.

Assuming it is found that the respondent was engaged in coa
m ning as defined by the Act, the next issue presented is (1)
whet her the respondent has violated the provisions of the Act and
i mpl enenting regul ations as alleged in the proposals for
assessment of civil penalties, and, if so, (2) the appropriate
civil penalties that should be assessed agai nst the respondent
for the alleged violations based upon the criteria set forth in
section 110(i) of the Act. Additional issues raised by the
parties are identified and di sposed of in the course of these
deci si ons.

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provisions

1. The Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977, Pub. L.
95-164, 30 U.S.C. O 801 et seq.

2. Section 110(i) of the 1977 Act, 30 U.S.C. 0O 820(i).

3. Conmission Rules, 20 CF.R 0O 2700.1 et seq.
Stipul ati ons

The parties stipulated that on October 27, 1987, M. Eugene
M1ls purchased a case of dynanmite from Laurel Explosives, Inc.

and that on Novenber 11, 1987, M. Curtis Smith purchased a case
of dynamite fromthis sane conpany (Tr. 6-7).

Di scussi on

In Docket No. KENT 88-159, MSHA Inspector Al ex R Sorke,
Jr., issued section 104(g)(1) "S&S" Order No. 3004622, dated
Novenber 16, 1987, pursuant to section 115(a)(2) of the Act, and
it states as foll ows:
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Eugene MIIls, James Harris and Curtis
Smith, laborers at the No. 1 Surface M ne, have
not received the requisite safety training as
stipulated in section 115 of the Act. All of
these nen have been determ ned to be new mners
whi ch have recei ved none of the required
24 hours of new miner training. In the absence
of such training each nan is declared to be a
hazard to himself and others and is to be
wi t hdrawn fromthe mne until he has received
the required training. A citation (No. 3004623)
for a violation of 30 C.F.R 0 48.25(a) has been
i ssued in conjunction with this order. This is
an illegal mning operation.

I nspector Sorke al so issued section 104(d)(1) "S&S" Citation
No. 3004623, on November 16, 1987, and he cited a violation of 30
C.F.R [ 48.25(a). The cited condition or practice is as follows:

Eugene M1ls, James Harris and Curtis Snmith determ ned
to be new miners working in the 001 pit have not

recei ved any of the required 24 hours of new mners
training. Al of these nen stated it had been 6 years
or longer since they had any training. This is an
illegal mning operation and has no training plan

A 104(g) (1) Order (No. 3004622) has been issued in
conjunction with this citation.

Docket No. KENT 88-104, concerns a section 104(a) citation
and a section 104(d)(1) order issued by the Inspector to the
respondent. The citation and order is dated Novenber 16, 1987,
and they are as foll ows:

Section 104(a) Non-"S&S" Citation No. 3004621, cites a
violation of 30 C.F. R 0O 41.10, and the condition or practice
states as foll ows:

M ni ng operations have comenced at the mine and the

operator has not subnmitted a |legal identity report to
the MSHA District Manager. This is an illegal mning

operation.

Section 104(d)(1) "S&S" Order No. 3004624, cites a violation
of 30 CF.R [ 48.23(a)(3), and the condition or practice states
as follows:
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M ning Activities have comenced at the
m ne and the operator has not submitted a train-
ing plan for approval by the MSHA District
Manager. This is an illegal m ning operation.

Petitioner's Testinmny and Evi dence

Pansy Hamm General Manager, Laurel Explosives, Inc., East
Ber nst adt, Kentucky, confirmed from copies of her records that
she sold a case of dynamite to M. Eugene MIIs on October 27,
1987, and a case of dynamite to M. Curtis Smith on November 11
1987. She identified a photograph of a case of dynamte as the
type she sold (Exhibit P-1). She al so explained the procedure for
pur chasi ng expl osives, and confirmed that a purchaser need only
show a driver's license and fill out a form and that the conpany
does not verify how the explosives were used (Tr. 8-14).

On cross-exam nation, Ms. Hamm stated that the expl osives
purchased by M. MIls and M. Snith are typical of purchases
made by many small nmine operators, and that she deals with nmany
such conpani es. She al so indicated that nore potent explosives
are purchased by m ne operators depending on their intended use,
and that explosives are also purchased for agricultural use,
stunmp renoval, or for small strip mne operations. Ms. Hanm
confirmed that she does not personally know M. MIls or M.
Smith (Tr. 14-17).

Thomas Spel | man, Special Investigator, State of Kentucky
Department of Natural Resources, testified as to his duties, and
he confirmed that they included flying in a helicopter to view
"illegal" mne sites. M. Spellman identified photographic
exhibits P-3, as photographs which he took fromthe helicopter on
Novenber 18, 1987, and he confirnmed that he recogni zed MSHA
I nspector Sorke's truck on the ground and recogni zed hi m st andi ng
in the roadway near the site in question

M. Spell man stated that a | egal mning operation pursuant
to state law requires a permt, and that it is usually
identifiable by markers. He confirned that the site in question
had no pernmit, and he observed no nmarkers. He confirned that he
has i nvestigated nore than 1,000 such sites during his 7 years as
a special investigator, and that the site in question had all of
the usual characteristics of a surface mning operation
i ncluding a highwal I, an exposed coal pit, and heavy equi pment
parked in the area. He stated that the site was approxi mately 122
feet long and 50 feet wide, and that the exposed coal depth was
approximately 2 feet.
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M. Spellman stated that in his opinion, the depth of the
excavation at the site, and in particular the 40 foot highwall
was not necessary for the construction of a house seat. He al so
was of the opinion that the site in question |ooked |ike a
typi cal mning operation (Tr. 17-31).

On cross-exam nation, M. Spellman stated that he did not
speak with Inspector Sorke on the day that he took the
phot ographs, and that he had no know edge that any MSHA citations
were issued. M. Spellman confirned that his discovery of the
site in question was made during a routine "fly-over"” of the area
and that his office had received no conplaint about any m ning
operation at the site.

M. Spel |l man confirnmed that while he observed that coal was
exposed, as shown in the |arge photograph, he saw no evi dence
that any of it had been renpoved or stockpiled, and could not
deternmi ne whet her any expl osives had been used at the site.

M. Spell man stated that another separate state department
has regul atory enforcenment jurisdiction over surface m ning
operations, but only in cases where nore than 450 tons of coal is
exposed, extracted, and renoved fromthe property with the intent
to sell it. In these instances, the state would prosecute the
of fending party. In the instant case, M. Spellmn confirned that
he had no know edge that any coal had been renmoved and taken off
the property, and that all of the information that he obtained
with respect to the site in question was turned over to specia
i nvestigator Mchael Hall, a fellow enforcement officer in his
department (Tr. 31-46).

MSHA | nspector Alex R Sorke, Jr., testified that his duties

i nclude the investigation of illegal mning activities, and that
he went to the site in question after receiving an anonynous
call. He considered the operation to be illegal because no nine

pl an or other paperwork had been filed with MSHA (Tr. 47). He
visited the site with State of Kentucky M ne |nvestigators George
Eugene Hollis and Herman Wl ianson, and found that the mne "was
wor ki ng." He observed a dozer, a tractor with a scraper pan on
the rear, and a highlift. He also found expl osives which were
used to shoot and create the highwall, and push broons were being
used to sweep the coal in preparation for its renoval

M. Sorke identified exhibit P-1 as a photograph of an enpty
box of explosives, and he confirned that the expl osives had
al ready been used and were not at the site. He confirnmed that he
spoke with M. MIIls, M. Harris, and M. Snmith, at the site, and
established that they were the operators (Tr. 49).
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M. Sorke confirmed that he observed "leg wires," which are used
to detonate explosives, in the overburden after it had been shot.
He al so confirmed that nost of the equi pment was renoved fromthe
site during his initial visit on Novenber 16, 1987, and that when
he next returned to the site on November 18, all of the equi pnent
had been renoved (Tr. 51).

M. Sorke stated that when he left the site on Novenber 16,
he believed that the three individuals in question were going to
visit the local UMM office to determ ne what was required to
conplete their training, and they informed himthat they had
cleared the site. However, at this tinme they said nothing to him
about preparing a house seat or building a house, and during the
course of his conversation with the individuals, M. Sorke
bel i eved that they agreed to do what was necessary to obtain
their m ne plans and conplete the required prelimnary work (Tr.
54).

M. Sorke identified exhibits P-4(a) through P-4(g) as
phot ographs of the equipnment, the site, and the pit, and he
expl ai ned the procedure which woul d have been used to prepare the
coal for renoval, and he confirmed that they were taken on
Novenber 16 (Tr. 55-59).

M. Sorke stated that he served the citations on Novemnber
18, because he had to first obtain a mne legal ID nunber to
pl ace on the citation fornms. He confirned that he hel ped the
three individuals fill out the necessary MSHA I egal Mne ID form
on Novenber 16, and that he filled out the information for them
(Tr. 60-61).

M. Sorke confirnmed that after conpleting the Mne ID form
(exhibit ALJ-1), he returned to his office to conplete the
citations (exhibits P-5 through P-8), and he then took themto
the site on Novermber 18. However, he confirned that he issued the
citations "verbally" on Novenber 16, and that "I told them
everything" (Tr. 66). He confirmed that he was aware of the fact
that there was no mine |ID nunber on file with MSHA before he
visited the site (Tr. 68).

M. Sorke confirmed that the effect of his section 104(g) (i)
order was to close the site because it renoved everyone fromthe
site until they could be trained. He also confirned that he
i ssued Citation No. 3004623, because the individuals adnitted
that they had not received the required new mner training (Tr.
68-69). He issued Citation No. 3004624, because no mne training
plan was on file with MSHA's district office (Tr. 70).
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M. Sorke stated that when he returned to the site on Novenber
18, the individuals in question for the first time "started
tal king about it being a house seat" (Tr. 73). He then served the
citations on them M. Sorke confirned that he subsequently
returned to the site and made certai n neasurenments. He determ ned
that the pit averaged 150 feet long, 50 feet wi de, and that the
coal was approximtely 2 feet in depth. The hignwall center was
60 feet high, and the ends neasured approximately 42 feet in
hei ght. Based on these neasurenents, he estimated that the pit
cont ai ned approxi mately 488 tons of exposed coal (Tr. 75). He
believed that the highwall and coal "was freshly exposed” and was
not there for any length of tinme. He estimated that all of the
exposed coal could have been renoved in one day (Tr. 75-76).

Based on his prior experience with simlar operations, and
the equi pnment which was present, he estimated that the three
i ndi vi dual s could have constructed the highwall, exposed the pit,
and renmoved the coal in 2 weeks, working 40 hours a week (Tr.
76). He also confirmed that in the course of his prior
i nvestigations of simlar sites, "I have been told hundreds of
times that it is going to be a house seat, trailer park, a pond.
I can show you a shopping center,” but that he never saw any of
these structures actually erected on these sites (Tr. 77).

M. Sorke was of the opinion that the site was a mne site
and not a house seat because the spoil was pushed over the hil
and into the trees, and the trees were all knocked over. Anyone
constructing a house seat would clear the land first and then
smoot h out the site and would not sinply push the spoil over the
hill. He also indicated that the grade leading to the site was
very steep, and although there was a good road, it was not
ditched, and was not the type of road that one would construct
for access to a house because one would need a tractor or
four-wheel drive to reach the site (Tr. 79). He also confirnmed
that an old inactive strip pit was |ocated below the site in
question (Tr. 80).

On cross-exam nation, M. Sorke stated that he communi cated
and spoke with M. Clarence MIIs, the individual who had an
ownership interest in the property, and the person who
purportedly contracted with the respondents to construct the
house seat, but was not certain whether he contacted hi mbefore
or after he issued the citations (Tr. 85). M. Sorke confirnmed
that M. MIls told himthat he was having a house seat built and
that he was interested in being able to renove the coal (Tr. 86).
He indicated that he net with M. MIIs before and
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after the site was closed, during his investigation of other
illegal mning operations on his property (Tr. 87).

M. Sorke confirmed that M. MIls told himthat the three
respondents were building a house seat, and that when he told him
this the m ne had been closed. M. Sorke stated that M. MIlIs
asked hi m whether or not he could renpove up to 250 tons of coa
as permtted by the State of Kentucky, and al so asked hi m about
| eaving the coal. M. Sorke stated that he advised M. MIIs that
no coal could be renpved under MSHA's regul ati ons because the
site was closed (Tr. 90-96). M. MIIls also advised himthat the
respondents were instructed not to take any of the coal (Tr. 97).

M. Sorke confirmed that although no coal was actually
renoved fromthe site in question, had he not acted and cl osed
the site, he believed the coal would have been renoved (Tr. 98).
He believed that all of the preparation work for coal renoval had
been conpleted at the tinme he issued the order, and that the
sweepi ng of the coal was the |ast step immediately prior to
taking out the coal. At this point in tine, it was M. Sorke's
opinion that the site was in fact a coal mne (Tr. 99).

M. Sorke stated that his estimate that the coal in the pit
was 24 inches deep was based on a hole that was dug in one
section of the pit, but he did not know who dug the hole (Tr.

107, Exhibit P-4(h)). He also agreed that "nobody in their right
m nd woul d build a house on coal" (Tr. 101). When asked whether a
violation would occur if the coal were pushed aside in order to
reach solid ground for a house seat, M. Sorke responded as
follows (Tr. 101-102):

A. It depends on what else is involved. If there's

equi pnment used on the site, or if there's explosives
used on the site, or there's other nmeans to connect the
site to Interstate Cormerce, then yes.

If they went up there and they hand-shoveled it all off
and got down to the coal --

Q Let's say they had four D-9s up there, and pushed it
off to the side.

A. Yes, pushed it to the side and they got to the coa
and they pushed it up, we would still consider it a
ni ne.
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Q You would assume that at sone tinme it would enter Interstate
Conmmer ce?

A It's the fact that the coal itself does not have to
enter Interstate Commerce to nake it an inspectible
(sic) site under MSHA regul ations.

Q So anybody that would be clearing an area on their
land in eastern Kentucky that pushed the coal aside
woul d be witten up for not having a nmine |icense,

trai ning and what these gentlemen have been witten up
for?

A. Depending on the circunstances involved, yes.

Q And M. MIls told you the circumstances were,
nunber one, he wanted a house seat; and nunber two,
t hese boys weren't to renmove any coal ?

A. That's correct. He also said that he got on to them
for getting down -- they weren't supposed to go down to
the coal |evel

M. Sorke confirmed that he made no inquiries of any |oca
tipples to determ ne whether the respondents had in fact sold any
coal because he saw no need to in view of the fact that no coa
was ever removed fromthe pit (Tr. 103). M. Sorke had no
personal know edge that the respondents were ever connected with
any prior coal mining activities (Tr. 103). He confirmed that he
suggested the initials "S H M be used for the name of the
respondent conpany because he needed a conpany nane in order to
obtain a mne ID nunber, and that the respondent's agreed to the
use of the initial's of their last names. M. Sorke denied that
they said anything about any construction conpany, and he denied
that the respondents told himon Novenber 16, that they were
clearing a house seat for M. Clarence MIIs (Tr. 104-105).

In response to further questions, M. Sorke confirned that
he did not conpletely discount the possibility that a house could
have been placed of the site which was being excavated because
"when you make a | evel spot out, you can put a house on it" (Tr.
115). He reiterated that in his 10-1/2 years of experience, he
has never seen a house constructed on any site simlar to the one
in this case. However, he agreed that it would not be unusual to
| evel out enough of a spot on a
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hillside to build a home, and that the site in question could
have been devel oped further in either direction (Tr. 116).

M. Sorke confirmed that it would have been economically
feasible to nove the avail able 488 tons of coal out of the site
over a 2-week period, and at the then-prevailing narket price of
$23 a ton, the coal would sell for close to $9,000 (Tr. 117). He
al so confirmed that he did not discuss with the respondent's
their reasons for digging down to expose the coal seam and he
confirmed that they offered no explanation as to why this was
done (Tr. 120).

CGeorge Eugene Hollis, Investigator, Kentucky Departnment of
Nat ural Resources, confirnmed that he visited the site in question
on Novenber 16, 1987, with his partner M. Herman WIIlianson, and
M. Sorke. M. Hollis stated that he observed that the pit had
been opened up, the coal was exposed, and he observed a highlift
or |loader, a small farmtractor, and a small bulldozer at the
site. He al so observed Janes Harris sweeping off the top of the
exposed coal with a broom and that was all of the work which was
taking place. M. Hollis stated that "By virtue of cleaning it
off, by all appearances, they were getting ready to load it,
break it up and load it" (Tr. 129-130).

M. Hollis stated that based on his experience in
investigating illegal mnes since 1982, the site he observed on
November 16, 1987, was in all general appearances, the sane as
any other site he has investigated. He considered the site in
guestion to be a mine operation, and for that reason he posted a
closure order on the site, "and that prohibits them from hauling
the coal™ (Tr. 131).

In response to a question as to what led himto conclude the
site in question was a mning operating, M. Hollis responded as
follows at (Tr. 131-134):

A. As we said already, fromall appearances of mning
equi pnent, cleaning the coal off to get rid of the
hash, to make the coal as good a quality as possible,
and al so when we first went up, if | remenber

correctly, the men wouldn't talk to us hardly at all to
start with.

They just sort of hee-hawed around. But eventually --
wel |, one of our first questions when we go on any site
is who's the operator? VWose job is this? O course
they wouldn't tell us to start with. But after a while,
after<<PCI TE, 11 FMSHRC 1164>>we began to tal k and
things get a little bit nore at ease, then they finally
said, "Yes, it's our job."

Q Didthey say "It's our job building a house seat?"
Di d anybody nention a house seat when you were up
t here?

A. No.



Q Were there any other things that I ed you to believe
that it was a coal m ne operation?

A Well, again, we just -- all of the assunptions that
were made in all the appearances is that it was a coa
m ne, and when we asked them what nane they wanted to
put it in, the closure itself by virtue of it, was
saying that this was a coal nine

We are going to wite this closure to prohibit you from
hauling the coal. You don't have a mine license on it
with the Departnment of Mnes and Mnerals. The closure
itself states that fact. Also what nane do you want to
put this in. Well, put it in SHM

Q They told you to put it in S HWM
A. Yes.

Q When you were giving themall these papers that said
all this stuff about coal operations and m ni ng coal
did they give you any indications by the conversation
that they knew that you considered it a coal mne
operation?

A. Yes, as a matter of fact, when we began to explain
our recomendations are the they did not have a
license; they did not have mine maps; and al so, that no
coal would be produced. In explaining these, in other
words, we show them the closure and give them a copy of
the cl osure.

Q Wen you left that, did you expect to have them cone
in the office in a short time and acquire a nine
license?
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A. Yes, we told our supervisor, and the way ny partner and
mysel f, and | suppose M. Sorke, felt that within probably a week
to two weeks' tine that they would be in. That's the feeling, you
know, again that we had.

Q Did they express anything about renoving the coal ?
Did they say anything to you about renoving the coal ?

A. Not exactly because all of the entire conversation
was that as far as the nmine closure and everythi ng was
the fact that it was going to prohibit them from
haul i ng the coal

And, at (Tr. 145-146; 148-149):

A. Just on first notice, just on the top of ny head,
two things. The site on MIls Creek where the coal was
exposed, it was pitted back. It had two sides to it. It
was pitted back, the highwall, actually on either end
and the back.

Coal was exposed. They were cleaning the coal for

mar ket use. You know, if the coal was just going to be
general ly taken up, you wouldn't have to worry about

it. If you are going to take coal and market it, then
that coal has to be as clean as possible, especially in
a poor nmarket, as it has been.

* *x % *x * % %

Q Has the State of Kentucky or the Departnment of M nes
and M ners ever received any kind of notice fromthese
three gentlenen that they were building a house seat?
Have they ever filed anything with the State of

Kent ucky?

A. No, no, we have not.

* *x % *x * % %

Q Did you see anything on Novenber 16th when you were
there with M. Sorke and M. W IIlianson that would
indicate to you that these gentlenen intended to do
nore than just push the coal over to the side and | eave
it sit?
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A. Yes, with the |oader there, and again, the fact that they were
cl eaning the coal. If they were going to dunp it over the hill,
or take it and even stockpile, there wouldn't be any purpose in
cleaning it.

On the lefthand side of the pit, water -- there was
some water that had drained over the coal, you know,
and it had the mud and what you could not scrape off it
with the grader blade that was on the little farm
tractor, he had the broom sweeping the coal, cleaning
of f the remainder of that water and nud and so forth.

Q In your experience, if a person was going to use
that coal for house coal, would they take such action
and use a pushbroomto clean the coal ?

A. In ny opinion, no.

M. Hollis stated that when he returned to the site on March
10, 1988, with M. Sorke, they spoke with M. Clarence MIIs, and
he identified the notes and comuni cati ons rmade while
communi cating with M. MIls (Tr. 134-135, exhibit P-9). M.
Hollis confirmed that he explained the mining lawto M. MIIs,
and answered his questions concerning the taking of "house coal,"
requi renents for obtaining mne pernmts, and the filing of m ne
pl ans (Tr. 138-144).

M. Hollis confirned that the State of Kentucky has not
received any notice fromthe respondents with respect to the
construction of any house seat at the site in question, and that
t hey have not chall enged the issuance of the closure order. The
closure order is still in effect, and the respondents woul d have
to obtain a license in order to haul the coal or renpve the
closure order (Tr. 147-148).

On cross-exam nation, M. Hollis confirmed that if M.
Clarence MIIls had exposed the coal in the pit and sinply pushed
it aside, or shoved it over the hill, he would not be in
viol ation of any state regulation (Tr. 150). M. Hollis confirmed
t hat he observed no coal trucks at or near the site waiting to
haul the coal away (Tr. 150). He al so confirned that anyone
prepari ng a house seat who conmes across a coal seamis not
required to notify his department (Tr. 151).
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M. Hollis stated that on March 10, 1988, M. Clarence MIls did
not informhimthat he had hired the respondents to build hima
house seat, and that he was only interested in |earning whether
he could use the coal for his own purposes or noving out 250 tons
or more (Tr. 153). He confirmed that the respondents told himto
use the initials "S HM for his state report, and that the
respondents have not evidenced any desire to remove the coal from
the site in question (Tr. 155).

M chael L. Hall, Investigator, State of Kentucky Natura
Resources Acadeny of Special Investigations, testified that he
has never investigated the S H M Coal Conpany, or any of the
three respondents in this case. However, he confirned that after
recei ving an anonymous call on Novenber 18, 1987, he went to the
site in question on Novenber 23, 1987, and spoke with M.
Clarence MIls. At that tine, he had no know edge that MSHA or
the State Departnent of Mnes and Mnerals had investigated the
site, but |learned about this after speaking with M. MIls (Tr.
163) .

M. Hall confirnmed that he nmade notes of his conversation
with M. MIls but did not have themwi th himat the hearing
because he was notified about the hearing at 8:00 a.m on the
sanme day it was schedul ed. However, he testified fromhis
recol l ection, and confirmed that M. MIIs informed himthat he
owned the property and intended to build a house seat at the site
in question and that "they ran into coal" (Tr. 165). M. Hall
stated that he explained the coal pernmit regulations to M. MIls
and advised himthat with the exception of extracting 250 tons
for his personal use, he would need a pernit to take more (Tr.
167). M. Hall confirmed that M. MIls was concerned about
conplying with the Iaw and that he read himhis Mranda rights,
and that M. MIls wanted to know what he had to do to stay out
of trouble (Tr. 167).

M. Hall stated that M. MIls inforned himthat Federal and
State mning people had visited the site, but said nothing to him
about the closure of the site (Tr. 168). M. Hall estimted that
the pit contai ned approximtely 370 tons of coal, and based on
hi s exam nation of the site, he was of the opinion that it was a
mne site (Tr. 170). He based this conclusion on the fact that
coal was exposed, overburden was pushed out over the outsl opes,
and extensive overburden had been renmoved to reach the coal (Tr.
170).

On cross-exam nation, M. Hall stated that he did not
believe M. MIIls' assertion that he had a house seat built at
the site in question. He confirmed that he did not charge M.
MI1lls with any violation and did not seek any advice from
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the county or the Commonwealth attorney. M. Hall also confirned
that no coal was renoved fromthe site and no | aw which he
enforces was violated on Novenmber 23, 1987 (Tr. 171).

M. Hall confirmed that he has recently built a house, and
in all house sites he has observed, all that is necessary is to
dig down to a clay surface rather than to go as deep as the site
in question was dug (Tr. 174).

Respondent's Testi nony and Evi dence

Eugene MIls, testified that M. Clarence MIls is his
uncle, and that sometine in July or August, 1987, his uncle asked
hi m about the cost to build a house seat at the site in question,
and al though no price was agreed to, he and M. Curtis Smth, and
M. James Harris worked together at the site to build a house
seat for his uncle. M. MIIls stated that they worked on the site
periodically over a 3-nmonth period (Tr. 179-182).

M. MIls stated that when M. Sorke and the two state
m ning inspectors cone to the site, M. Sorke | ooked at the
exposed coal and remarked that "it |ooks to ne |ike you are
mning coal." M. MIIls stated that he informed M. Sorke that
they were not mining coal and were building a house seat, and
that if they were doing anything wong, they should be taken to
jail. M. MIls stated that M. Sorke replied that "I'Il try to
hel p you out" (Tr. 183).

M. MIls conceded that broons were being used to clean off
the coal when M. Sorke arrived at the site, and that the
cl eani ng was necessary to renove the nud so the coal could burn.
He stated that his uncle wanted the coal for his house, and he
did not know the depth of the coal, but estimated that it was 8
i nches deep (Tr. 184).

M. MIls stated that the respondents had no interest in the
coal, and that he offered to push it aside for his uncle's use,
but M. Sorke stated that it was "a shane to waste the coal,"” and
that he would try to find a way for the respondents to renove it
legally and take it to the foot of the hill. M. MIls stated
that M. Sorke informed himthat he would need a M ne | D nunber,
and that he and the other respondents signed the required MSHA
form (exhibit ALJ-1), but that it was not filled out when they
signed it (Tr. 185). M. Sorke informed himthat he would need a
conpany narme, and M. MIlIls stated that "S H M Construction
sounds good to nme," and that he advised M. Sorke to use that
nane if he needed to have one.
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M. MIls also confirmed that M. Sorke did not fill out the form
in his presence (Tr. 185-186).

M. MIls stated that no coal had been renoved fromthe
site, or even broken up and made ready to be noved, and that he
hired no trucks, or had any trucks waiting to pick up the coa
(Tr. 186). He denied that he and the other respondents had any
interest in renoving the coal, and confirmed that that they nade
no effort to renove the closure order. Although they discussed
obtaining a mning permit, "there were nore obstacles in our way,
and it was just out of the question. In order to do that,
we were admitting to something that we weren't doing as far as
m ning" (Tr. 188).

M. MIls stated that the access road to the site was not
wi de enough to allow coal trucks to cone and go. He confirnmed
that he has never engaged in any coal mning business or sold any
coal (Tr. 190-191). He stated that he has constructed ot her house
sites and that he generally has to cut out the side of a mountain
in nost areas where this has been done (Tr. 192).

M. MIls confirnmed that he and M. Curtis Smth purchased
two cases of explosives, and it was used for shooting ditch
lines, fill stone, and rocks. This work was done at the sanme tine
that he was on his uncle's property (Tr. 193). M. MIls stated
that no coal was ever broken or renoved fromthe site, and he had
no intention of renmoving it fromthe property (Tr. 194).

On cross-exam nation, M. MIIls confirmed that in July and
August, 1987, imredi ately preceding the work for his uncle, he
was wor ki ng on renmoving creek rock and that he was using the sane
equi pnent. The rock was shipped to Lexington and sold, and it was
renoved by hand and | oader and trucked out. The rock busi ness was
not good, and he engaged in sone farming on his father's and
grandfather's | and. The house seat for M. MI|Is was never
conpl eted, and none of the respondents were ever paid for the
work (Tr. 196).

M. MIls stated that his uncle did not intend to sell the
coal, and that he sinply wanted it noved so the house seat could
be conpleted. M. MIIs confirnmed that he had an oral agreenent
with his uncle, had worked for himin the past, and had expected
to be paid for the house seat work (Tr. 200).

M. MIls stated that when he began the construction of the
house seat he had no idea that any coal was at the site, and that
his intent was to build a house seat (Tr. 202). Wen asked about
his intentions with respect to the coal had
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M. Sorke and the other investigators not arrived at the site on
November 16, 1987, M. MIIls responded "our intent was to break
it up, pile it to the side, finish the house seat, get our nobney
and try to get a new pair of shoes" (Tr. 203). He stated that
when his uncle first asked hi mabout constructing a house seat,
they did not discuss the disposition of any coal which nmay have
been found, and his uncle said nothing about stockpiling any coa
or taking it for his own use. M. MIls confirmed that he would
have to dig another 6 to 8 feet through the exposed coal in order
to reach a suitable house seat (Tr. 203).

M. MIls stated that the words "Coal Conpany" were inserted
on the MSHA M ne ID formby M. Sorke, and that he told M. Sorke
that he and the other respondents were not a coal conpany, and
that they were constructing a house seat for his uncle and sinply
ran into the coal seam (Tr. 206). M. MIls stated that M. Sorke
replied "Don't give nme that bull crap" (Tr. 207). Wen asked why
he was cleaning the coal if he sinply intended to bulldoze it
aside so that his uncle could have it, M. MIIs stated that his
uncle wanted to burn it, and rather than breaking it up, he
decided that the sinple solution was to push it aside, and that
was his intent (Tr. 209).

M. MIlls stated that he "checked out" the price of |ow
quality coal in 1987, and that it sold for $12 or $13, and that
"wildcat" coal was $6 or $8, and he questioned how he woul d
benefit by "trying to haul it off" (Tr. 208). He stated that his
uncle came to the site after the coal seam was exposed, and asked
if there would be a problemfor himto break up and burn the coa
(Tr. 209). M. MIIs stated that his uncle wanted the house seat
so that he could build a house for his son (Tr. 211). M. MIls
confirmed that the son was 16 years old at the tine the house
seat was built (Tr. 213).

Wth regard to the training citations, M. MIIls confirned
that the respondents "hired a safety nan" and had sone
prelimnary discussions with an individual who provides training
for the Chaney Creek Coal Company (Tr. 223). Respondent Curtis
Smith, who was present at the hearing, but was not called to
testify, confirmed that while this was true, the respondents have
not in fact taken any training (Tr. 223). Wen asked why an
i nquiry would be nade about training, if as clainmed by the
respondents, that they were not engaged in a mning operation,
Eugene M| 1ls responded "W were confused, and we didn't know
which way to go. Finally, we cane to the point that we sought
| egal hel p" (Tr. 224).
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M. MIls confirmed that some of the explosives in question were
used to shoot some rock out of the road to the site in question
and that sonme was used to bl ast sandstone fromthe highwall. He
al so confirmed that the rest of the overburden was renoved and
pushed away with the bull dozer and highlift (Tr. 233).

I nspector Sorke was recalled in rebuttal, and he testified
that he filled out the MSHA Mne ID formin question in the
presence of M. Eugene MIls on the sane day of his initial visit
to the site on Novenber 16, 1987, and that the respondents signed
it at that tinme. M. Sorke explained that since the form was
conpl eted that day, he ternminated Citation No. 3004621, that same
day (Tr. 215). M. Sorke reiterated that the subject of the house
seat was not discussed on November 16, and that this issue was
first discussed on Novenber 18, 1967 (Tr. 215).

M. Sorke confirmed that he wote in the words "Coa
Conmpany" on the mine ID form and that when he asked the
respondents for a conpany nane to insert on the form they
responded "Call us S H M Coal Conpany," and that is what he put
on the form (Tr. 218). M. Sorke stated that he still does not
believe M. MIIs' assertion that the respondents were building a
house seat at the site, and after hearing M. MIIls"' testinony
that he inquired about the price of coal in 1987, M. Sorke
remarked "l even believe it less now' (Tr. 219). M. Sorke had no
knowl edge with respect to the abatenent of the training
citations, and although he stated that the respondents nay have
since received training, he was not certain (Tr. 221-222).

M. Sorke expl ai ned the hazard ram fications connected with
untrai ned persons who engage in strip mning, and the use of
expl osives. MSHA consi ders such untrained individuals to be
hazards to thensel ves and to each other. M. Sorke confirned that
he based his unwarrantable failure finding on the fact that he
bel i eved that the respondents knew that they were required to be
trai ned before beginning any mning (Tr. 228). He reiterated that
he first spoke with Clarence MIls when he was with M. Hollis on
March 10, 1988, and that he did not speak with himearlier
because he had no reason to and did not know who owned the
property (Tr. 228). M. Sorke stated further that when he |eft
the site on Novenber 18, 1987, after speaking with Eugene MIIs,
he assuned that the respondents woul d go ahead and obtain their
training (Tr. 230).

M. Sorke confirmed that after M. Eugene MIls told himin
November 18, that he was building a house seat for his
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uncle, he did not contact the uncle at that time (Tr. 230). M.
Sorke further confirned that he had no know edge that M. Hall
had spoken with Clarence MIIls until the day prior to the hearing
in this case (Tr. 230). When asked if he were aware of the fact
that Clarence MIIls has been hauling building materials to the
foot of the site in question, M. Sorke replied "No, but it wll
not surprise ne in the least. If | was hunting a way out, |'d be
haul i ng, too" (Tr. 231).

M. Sorke confirmed that although the equi pment previously
mentioned was at the site on Novenber 16, 1987, the only work he
observed bei ng done was the sweeping of the exposed coal wth
pushbrooms. When he returned on Novenber 18, the equi pnment had
been renoved fromthe site, and M. Sorke confirnmed that he
permtted the respondents to renove the equi pment "as |long as
they didn't touch that coal" (Tr. 248).

Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons
The Jurisdictional Question

The definition of "coal or other mne" found in 3(h) (1) of
the 1977 Mne Act is as foll ows:

"[Cloal or other mine" neans (A) an area of land from
which mnerals are extracted in non-liquid formor, if
inliquid form are extracted with workers underground,
(B) private ways and roads appurtenant to such area,
and (C) lands, excavations, underground passageways,
shafts, slopes, tunnels and workings, structures,
facilities, equipnent, machines, tools, or other
property including inmpoundnments, retention dans, and
tailings ponds, on the surface or underground, used in,
or to be used in, or resulting from the work of
extracting such mnerals fromtheir natural deposits in
nonliquid form or if inliquid form w th workers
underground, or used in, or to be used in, the nilling
of such minerals, or the work of preparing coal or
other mnerals, and includes custom coal preparation
facilities (enphasis added).

The definition of "coal or other mine" is further clarified
by the Legislative History of the Act. The Senate Report No.
95-181 (May 16, 1977) provides that:

Finally, the structures on the surface to be used in or
resulting fromthe preparation of the
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extracted mnerals are included in the defini-
tion of "mne." . . . [Blut it is the
Committee's intention that what is considered to
be a m ne and to be regul ated under the Act be
gi ven the broadest possibly (sic) interpreta-
tion, and it is the intent of this Conmmittee
t hat doubts be resolved in favor of inclusion of
a facility within the coverage of the Act.

S. Rep. No. 181, 95th Cong., 1st Sess. 602, reprinted in [1977]
U S. CODE CONG. & ADM N. NEWS 3401, 3414.

The Joint Conference Conmttee continued al ong these samne
lines in stating that related structures, equipment or
facilities, even though not yet in use in connection with nmning
activities, but which were to be used in connection with such
mne related activities, are to be included in the definition of
a mne. (Conference Rep. No. 461, 95th Cong., 1st Sess. (1977)
reprinted in LEQ SLATIVE H STORY OF THE FEDERAL M NE SAFETY AND
HEALTH ACT 1279, 1316 (1977)).

As a renedial statute, the Act has been given broad
interpretation and has been found to apply to a broad spectrum of
activities, including prospecting, assessing value of ore bodies
and quarrying in one's backyard. Marshall v. Wiit, 628 F.2d 1255,
1258 (9th Cir. 1980) (backyard rock quarry is within the
definition of a mne); Marshall v. Stoudt's Ferry Preparation
Co., 602 F.2d 589, 592 (3d Cir. 1979), cert. denied, 444 U. S
1015 (1980) (sand and gravel preparation plant is a "m ne" within
the nmeaning of the Act); Secretary of Labor v. Cyprus Industria
M nerals Corporation, 3 FMSHRC 1 (January 1981), aff'd by the
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals, Decenber 28, 1981, Cyprus
I ndustrial Mnerals v. FMSHRC and Donovan, 2 MSHC 1554 (diggi ng
of a tunnel to assess the value of talc deposits within the
definition of a "mine").

The Conmi ssion has held that the actual extraction of
mnerals is not a precondition for jurisdiction to apply. See:
Carolina Stalite Company, 3 MSHC 1759 (Septenber 12, 1984);
Secretary of Labor v. Al exander Brothers, 4 FMSHRC 541 (Apri
1982). See also Marshall v. Stoudt's Ferry Preparation Co.,
supra, and Marshall v. Tacoma Fuel Conpany, No. 77-10104-B (W D.
Va. June 29, 1981, holding that extraction is not required under
the Act for coverage of preparation facilities.

In its posthearing brief, the petitioner cites the case of
Godwi n v. Occupational Safety and Health Revi ew Comm ssion, 540
F.2d 1013 (9th Cir. 1976), a case arising under the Cccupationa
Safety and Health Act relating to the growi ng of grapes.
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In that case the court found that the activity of clearing |and
was a necessary part of the grow ng process, and that waiting
until the grapes were planted to find that the operation was
covered woul d be a meani ngl ess gesture. Petitioner argues that in
li ke manner, the clearing and preparation of |and for the renoval
of coal is an integral and necessary activity in the extraction
of coal, and that in a strip mning operation the majority of the
work and effort involved in the mning operation is in such
preparatory activities. | agree with the petitioner's position
and | conclude and find that the preparation of the land is an

i ntegral and necessary process in the extraction of coal and that
such activities constitute mning and are covered by the Act.

The thrust of the respondent's defense in this case is that
it was not conducting a strip mning operation, and that it was
engaged in clearing a site for the construction of a house seat.

I find this contention to be lacking in credibility and it is
rejected. For the reasons which follow, | conclude and find that
t he preponderance of the evidence establishes that the respondent
was engaged in a strip mining operation and was in the |ast phase
of land preparation prior to the actual renoval of coal at the
time Inspector Sorke arrived on the scene and issued the
citations.

The evidence in this case establishes that two of the
respondents, Eugene MIIs and Curtis Smith, purchased expl osives
which were used in part to clear the site in question. |nspector
Sorke found evidence at the site that explosives had in fact been
used, and al though sone of the explosives were used for other
pur poses, Eugene MIls admitted that sonme of it was used to
construct a roadway to the site and to blast sandstone fromthe
highwall. M. MIls also admtted that the rest of the overburden
was renoved and pushed away with a bulldozer and highlift which
were used at the site.

State of Kentucky Departnent of Natural Resources Specia
I nvestigator Thomas Spellman testified that he flew over the site
in question and took aerial photographs of the site. M.
Spel | man, who had previously investigated over 1,000 illega
strip mning operations, testified that the site, which he
descri bed as approximately 122 feet |l ong and 50 feet w de, had
all of the characteristics of a surface mning operation,
i ncluding a highwal I, an exposed coal pit, and heavy equi pnent
parked in the area.

Kentucky Special Investigator Mchael Hall, testified that
when he visited the site he observed the pit containing
approximately 370 tons of exposed coal, overburden pushed over the
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site outslopes, and he indicated that extensive overburden had
been renpved to expose the coal. He was of the opinion that the
operation was a mne site.

Kent ucky investigator George Hollis testified that when he
visited the site in the conmpany of MSHA | nspector Sorke, he
observed an open and exposed coal pit and a highlift or |oader, a
smal|l tractor, and a bulldozer. He al so observed one of the
respondents, Janes Harris, sweeping off the top of the exposed
coal with a broom and he believed that this was being done in
preparation of breaking up and | oading out the coal. He testified
that if the respondents nerely intended to renove and push the
coal aside, there would be no need for cleaning it, and in his
opinion the site was an illegal strip mning operation simlar to
many that he has observed during his experience as an
i nvestigator. He confirnmed that he posted a state cl osure order
at the site prohibiting the renoval of any coal, and that the
order is still in effect and would require the respondents to
obtain a license before they could renove any of the coal

I nspector Sorke, who visited the site on at |east two
occasions, testified that the respondents adnitted that they had
cleared the site, and he found evidence that explosives were used
to shoot and create the highwall. He al so observed a bull dozer, a
tractor with a scraper pan attached to the rear, and a highlift
at the site, and further observed that pushbroons were bei ng used
to sweep the coal in preparation for its renmoval. He stated that
t he sweeping of the coal would be the last step in preparing it
for renoval. After taking measurenents, he estimated that the
coal pit was approximtely 150 feet | ong and 50 feet w de, and
that the exposed coal was approximtely 2 feet in depth. He
confirmed that the highwall was approximtely 60 feet high at its
center, and approxi mately 42 in height at each end. He further
estimated that the coal pit contained approxi mately 488 tons of
freshly exposed coal, and he believed that it could have been
removed in one day. Based on his observations, and prior
experience, M. Sorke concluded that the site in question was in
fact a mne site.

M. Clarence MIls, the owner of the property where the site
in question is located, did not testify in this case, and the
record establishes that he has inpaired hearing and is nute. At
the request of the respondent's counsel, a hearing inpaired
interpreter was provided at the hearing, but counsel did not cal
M. MIls as a witness. The only witness testifying for the
respondent at the hearing was Eugene MIIs, one of the three
i ndi vidual s who cleared the site in question. None of the other
partners in this venture testified.
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Eugene MIls testified that the respondents never intended to
m ne any coal, and that they cleared the site in expectation of
constructing a house seat for his uncle who wanted to build a
house for his 16 year old son. M. MIIs confirmed that he had an
"oral contract” with his uncle to construct the site and that he
has never been paid for the work. There is no evidence that a
buil ding or clearing permt was obtained for the work, and no
proposed house plans were ever produced. M. MIIls testified that
when | nspector Sorke arrived at the site with the two state
i nspectors, he informed M. Sorke that the respondents were
constructing a house seat. M. Sorke testified that when he
initially visited the site on Novenber 16, 1987, none of the
respondents said anything to himabout building a house seat, and
that they told himthis when he next returned on Novenber 18,
1987. Special Investigator Hollis testified that when he visited
the site on Novenber 16, 1987, in the conmpany of M. Sorke, none
of the respondents mentioned anythi ng about buil ding a house
seat. | find M. Sorke's testinony, corroborated by M. Hollis,
to be nore credible than that of Eugene MIIs, and | conclude and
find that M. MIIs did not inform M. Sorke that he was
constructing a house seat at the time M. Sorke initially visit
the site, and that this contention on M. MIIls' part cane at a
later time.

I nvestigator Hall, who interviewed Clarence MIIls on
November 23, 1987, testified that M. MIls informed himthat he
was having a house seat constructed on the site, but M. Hall did
not believe him because he had recently constructed a house and
found that it was unnecessary to dig as deep as the site in
guestion was being dug for a house seat. M. Hall also testified
that M. MIls informed himthat although he intended to have a
house seat constructed, the respondents "ran into coal," and M.
MIls wanted to know what he could do to "stay out of trouble."

Investigator Hollis testified that he spoke with Cl arence
MIls on March 10, 1988, in the conpany of M. Sorke, and that
M. MIls said nothing about hiring the respondents to construct
a house seat. M. Hollis stated that M. MIIs was only
interested in knowi ng whet her he could use the coal for his own
pur poses, and that he (Hollis) answered M. MIIs' questions
about removing "house coal" and the state requirenents for
obtaining a mne permt and filing mne plans.

I nspector Sorke, who spoke with Clarence MIls on nore than
one occasion before and after the site was cl osed, confirned that
M. MIls infornmed himthat the respondents were constructing a
house seat. M. MIIs also inquired as to whether it would be
|l egal to renove any of the coal fromthe
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site, and M. Sorke explained MSHA's requirements to him

Al t hough M. Sorke did not conpletely discount the possibility
that a house could be constructed on the site in question, he
obviously did not believe that this was the case. M. Sorke
comrented that "no one in their right mne would build a house on
coal," and he stated that in his 10-1/2 years of experience he
has never seen a house constructed on a site sinilar to the one
in question. He also alluded to the fact that in prior instances
when he has encountered illegal strip m nes, he has been told
"hundreds of times" that house seats were being constructed, but
he never saw a house built at any of these sites. M. Sorke was
al so of the opinion that the site in question was not conducive
to the construction of a house because of steep terrain, the
manner in which the site was being cleared, and the fact that one
woul d need a tractor or four-wheel drive vehicle to reach the
site.

M. Eugene MIIls further testified that he had no prior
knowl edge of the existence of any coal seamat the site in
guestion, and that once the coal was exposed, the respondents
only intended to renove it and pile it aside to finish the house
seat (Tr. 202). He confirmed that he had no know edge as to the
actual depth of the exposed coal seam and that in order to
renove the coal to reach a suitable house seat depth, he would
have had to dig another 6 or 8 feet, or "maybe nore" (Tr. 184,
203). In ny view, such further digging would create an even
hi gher highwall, and | seriously doubt that anyone woul d have
constructed a house at the site in question. Having viewed the
site at the conclusion of the hearing, | found that access to the
purported | ocation of the house seat was extrenmely difficult,
even on foot while walking up to the site along steep inclines.

M. MIls also confirnmed that in July or August of 1987, and
prior to the clearing of the purported house seat, the
respondents were engaged in the business of rempving creek rock
fromMIIl Creek, using the sane equi pnent, and that the rock was
trucked to Lexington for sale on the open market (Tr. 194-195).
bel i eve that the respondents intended to do the sanme thing with
t he coal which they were cleaning prior to its extraction, and
that they would have done so had the inspectors not discovered
the site.

After careful consideration of all of the evidence and
testimony presented in this case, | reject the respondents
contention that they were clearing the site for a house seat, and
I conclude and find that they were engaged in a surface nining
operation subject to the Act.
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Interstate Commerce | ssue

Article I, Section 8, Clause 3, of the Constitution gives
Congress the power to "regulate commerce . . . anong the severa
States."” The U. S. Suprene Court has a |long history of uphol ding
Federal regulations of ostensibly local activity on the theory
that such activity may have some affect on interstate comrerce
Local activities, regardless of their size and their appearance
as purely intrastate, may in fact affect interstate comerce if
the activity falls within a class of regulated activity. See:
Wckard v. Filburn, 317 U.S. 111 (1942); Fry v. United States,
421 U.S. 542 (1975). In Perez v. United States 402 U.S. 146, 155
(1971), the court held that where a class of activities is
regul ated and that class is within the reach of Federal power,
the courts have no power to exclude "as trivial" individua
i nstances of the regulated activity.

Section 4 of the 1969 Coal Act, which is applicable in this
case, states as follows with regard to the m nes subject to the
Act: "Each coal or other nine, the products of which enter
comerce, or the operations or products of which affect comrerce,
and each operator of such mine, and every mner in such mne
shall be subject to the provisions of this Act."

The 1977 M ne Act is intended to assure safe and heal thfu
wor ki ng conditions for miners, and Congress clearly stated its
findings and purposes in this regard in the 1969 Coal Act, as
well as in the 1977 Act which extended jurisdiction of the Coa
Act to all mining activities. The Congressional findings and
purposes are set forth in section 2 of the 1969 Act, and they are
equally applicable to all mnes. Sone of these findings and
pur poses are as follows:

(c) there is an urgent need to provide nore effective
means and neasures for inproving the working conditions
and practices in the Nation's coal mnes in order to
prevent death and serious physical harm and in order
to prevent occupational diseases originating in such

n nes;

(d) the existence of unsafe and unhealthful conditions
and practices in the Nation's coal mnes is a serious
i mpedi ment to the future
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grow h of the coal mining industry and cannot be
t ol er at ed;

* *x * *x * % %

(f) the disruption of production and the |oss of incone
to operators and miners as a result of coal mne
accidents or occupationally caused di seases unduly

i mpedes and burdens comrerce. [Enphasis added. ]

Perez v. United States, 402 U. S. 146 (1971), held that
Congress may make a finding as to what activity affects
interstate conmerce, and by doing so it obviates the necessity
for denonstrating jurisdiction under the comrerce cl ause in
i ndi vidual cases. Thus, it is not necessary to prove that any
particular intrastate activity affects commerce if the activity
is included in a class of activities which Congress intended to
regul ate because that class affects conmerce.

M ning is anmong those classes of activities which are
covered by the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution
and thus is anong those classes which are subject to the broadest
reaches of Federal regulation because the activities affect
interstate comerce. Marshall v. Kraynak, 457 F. Supp. 907, (WD.
Pa. 1978), aff'd, 604 F.2d 231 (3d Cir. 1979), cert. denied, 444
U.S. 1014 (1980). Further, the legislative history of the Act,
and court decisions, encourage a |liberal reading of the
definition of a mine found in the Act in order to achieve the
Act's purpose of protecting the safety of m ners. Westnorel and
Coal Conpany v. Federal M ne Safety and Health Revi ew Commi ssi on
606 F.2d 417 (4th Cir. 1979). See also: Godwin v. Cccupationa
Safety and Heal th Revi ew Commi ssion, 540 F.2d 1012 (9th Cir
1976), where the court held that unsafe working conditions of one
operation, even if ininitial and preparatory stages, influences
all other operations simlarly situated, and consequently affect
i nterstate conmerce

The courts have consistently held that mining activities
whi ch may be conducted intrastate affect commerce sufficiently to
subject the m nes to Federal control. See: Marshall v. Kilgore,
478 F. Supp. 4 (E.D. Tenn. 1979); Secretary of the Interior v.
Shi ngara, 418 F. Supp. 693 (MD. Pa. 1976); Marshall v. Bosack
463 F. Supp. 800, 801 (E.D. Pa. 1978). Likew se, Comm ssion
judges have held that intrastate mning activities are covered by
the Act because they affect interstate conmerce. See: Secretary
of Labor v. Rockite Gravel Conpany, 2 FMSHRC 3543 (Decenber
1980); Secretary of Labor v. Klippstein and Pickett, 5 FMSHRC
1424 (August 1983); Secretary
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of Labor v. Havil and Brothers Coal Conpany, 3 FMSHRC 1574 (June
1981); Secretary of Labor v. Mellott Trucking Conpany, 10 FMSHRC
409 (March 1988).

A state highway departnment operating an intrastate open pit
I i mestone mine, the product of which is crushed, broken and used
to maintain county roads was held to be subject to the Act. Ogle
County Hi ghway Departnment, 1 FMSHRC 205 (January 1981).

A crushed stone nine operation that had an MSHA "M ne | D"
nunber and was inspected by MSHA was held to be subject to the
Act because the sales of rock products, as well as the use of
equi pment manufactured out of state, affected comrerce within the
meani ng of the Act's jurisdictional |anguage. Tide Creek Rock
Products, 4 FMSHRC 2241 (Decenber 1982). See al so: Sout hway
Construction Co., 6 FMSHRC 174 (January 1984).

A gravel mne operator conducting activities solely within a
state was held to be subject to the Act because its |ocal nining
activity had an inmpact on interstate market. Rockite Gravel Co.

2 FMSHRC 2543 (December 1980), Commi ssion Review Deni ed January
13, 1981; Scoria Products Branch, Utro, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 788
(March 1984); Southway Construction Co., supra.

| conclude and find that the intent of the 1977 M ne Act, as
wel |l as the preceding 1969 Coal Act, as manifested by the
| egislative history, is that it is to be broadly construed so as
to apply to all of the nation's mines as a class of activity
whi ch affects commerce, and the cited cases supports this
concl usion. Accordingly, | further conclude and find that the
respondent's mning operation is covered by the 1977 M ne Act and
affects comerce within the neaning of the Act, and that the
respondent is within reach of the Act.

The Respondent's Liability

In response to the petitioner's pretrial discovery requests,
counsel for the respondents submitted a copy of a Commonweal t h of
Kentucky Certificate of Incorporation, and Articles of
I ncorporation, for a Corporation identified as the "SHS
Corporation," and the registration agent is shown as Janes
Harris, one of the individuals who along with Curtis Smth and
Eugene MIls, were engaged in the mning activity in question in
this case. However, | find no particular connection with this
corporation and the work being perfornmed by these individuals in
connection with the nine site in question

Exhibit ALJ-1 is a copy of an MSHA M ne Legal Identification
form and it reflects that M. Harris, M. Smth, and
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M. MIls were partners operating the SHM Coal Conpany, under
MSHA M ne ldentification Number 15-16245. There is a dispute as
to who prepared and filled out the form Although Eugene MIIs
conceded that he and the other individuals signed the form he
claimed that it was not filled out when they signed it. He al so
clainmed that after Inspector Sorke informed himthat he needed a
conpany name to put on the form he told M. Sorke that "SHM
Construction sounds good to ne," and asked M. Sorke to use that
nane on the form M. Sorke claimed that he filled out the form
in the presence of M. MIIs on the same day of his initial visit
to the site on Novenber 16, 1987, and that all three individuals
signed it that same day. M. Sorke further claimed that M. MIls
told himto use the name "SHM Coal Conpany,"” and that he inserted
this name on the form

The formin question, on its face, is dated Novenber 16,
1987, the sanme day that M. Sorke issued Citation No. 3004621
citing the respondent with a violation of section 41.10, for not
submitting the legal identity formto MSHA. M. Sorke explai ned
that he term nated the citation that sane day after the form was
executed by the respondents, and he confirmed that he knew t hat
no legal identify formwas on file with MSHA before he visited
the site. He also indicated that he had verbally issued all of
the citations on Novermber 16, but reduced themto witing and
actually served them on the respondent on Novenber 18, and that
he did so because he had to include the mne identity nunmber on
the citations forms. | find M. Sorke's explanation to be
reasonabl e and credible.

Irrespective of the information on the form the evidence
adduced in this case establishes that the three individuals in
guestion were conducting a mning operation, and that they were
doing so in association with each other as independent
contractors. As such, they are clearly accountable and liable for
their actions, including the violations and any civil penalty
assessnments for those violations.

Fact of Violations
Docket No. KENT 88-159

In this case the respondent is charged in a section
104(d) (1) "S&S" citation with a single violation of the training
requi renents of 30 C.F.R 0O 48.25(a), because M. MIls, M.
Harris, and M. Snith had not received the new mner training
required by this regulation. The respondent has not rebutted the
reliable and probative evidence presented by the petitioner in
support of the violation, and I conclude and find
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that it establishes a violation. Accordingly, the violation IS
AFFI RVED

Docket No. KENT 88-104

In this case, the respondent is charged in a section 104(a)
non-"S&S" citation with a violation of the m ne operator
notification requirenments found in 30 CF. R 0O 41.10. The
reliable and probative evidence presented by the petitioner
clearly establishes that the respondent did not file the required
report in conpliance with the cited regulation. Accordingly, |
conclude and find that a violation has been established, and it
| S AFFI RVED

The respondent is also charged in a section 104(d)(1) "S&S"
order with a failure to submit a training plan as required by
mandatory training standard 30 C.F. R 0O 48.23(a)(3). The reliable
and probative evidence presented by the petitioner establishes
that the respondent did not file any training plan, and
conclude and find that a violation has been established.
Accordingly, it IS AFFI RVED.

Significant and Substantial Violations

A "significant and substantial" violation is described in
section 104(d)(1) of the Mne Act as a violation "of such nature
as could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause
and effect of a coal or other nmine safety or health hazard." 30
C.F.R 0O814(d)(1). Aviolation is properly designated

signi ficant and substantial "if, based upon the particular facts
surroundi ng the violation there exists a reasonable |ikelihood
that the hazard contributed to will result in an injury or

illness of a reasonably serious nature." Cenent Division
Nat i onal Gypsum Co., 3 FMSHRC 822, 825 (April 1981).

In Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1, 3-4 (January 1984), the
Commi ssion explained its interpretation of the term "significant
and substantial" as follows:

In order to establish that a violation of a mandatory
safety standard is significant and substantial under
Nati onal Gypsum the Secretary of Labor nmust prove: (1)
the underlying violation of a nmandatory safety
standard; (2) a discrete safety hazard--that is, a
measure of danger to safety-contributed to by the
violation; (3) a reasonable likelihood that the hazard
contributed to will result in an injury; and (4) a
reasonabl e |ikelihood that the injury
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in question will be of a reasonably serious
nature.

In United States Steel M ning Conpany, Inc., 7 FMSHRC 1125,
1129, the Commi ssion stated further as foll ows:

We have explained further that the third el enent of the
Mat hies fornmula "requires that the Secretary establish
a reasonabl e |likelihood that the hazard contributed to
will result in an event in which there is an injury.”
U S Steel Mning Co., 6 FMSHRC 1834, 1836 (August
1984). We have enphasi zed that, in accordance with the
| anguage of section 104(d)(1), it is the contribution
of a violation to the cause and effect of a hazard that
nmust be significant and substantial. U S. Steel M ning
Conpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1866, 1868 (August 1984); U.S.
Steel M ning Conmpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1573, 1574-75
(July 1984).

The question of whether any particular violation is
significant and substantial nust be based on the particular facts
surroundi ng the violation, including the nature of the m ne
i nvol ved, Secretary of Labor v. Texasgulf, Inc., 10 FMSHRC 498
(April 1988); Youghi ogheny & Chio Coal Conpany, 9 FMSHRC 2007
(Decenber 1987).

Unwar r ant abl e Fail ure

The governing definition of unwarrantable failure was
expl ai ned in Zeigler Coal Conpany, 7 |IBMA 280 (1977), decided
under the 1969 Act, and it held in pertinent part as follows at
295-96:

In light of the foregoing, we hold that an inspector
should find that a violation of any mandatory standard
was caused by an unwarrantable failure to conply with
such standard if he deternines that the operator

i nvol ved has failed to abate the conditions or
practices constituting such violation, conditions or
practices the operator knew or should have known
existed or which it failed to abate because of a |ack
of due diligence, or because of indifference or |ack of
reasonabl e care

In several recent decisions concerning the interpretation
and application of the term"unwarrantable failure," the
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Commi ssion further refined and explained this term and concl uded
that it neans "aggravated conduct, constituting nore than

ordi nary negligence, by a mne operator in relation to a
violation of the Act." Enery M ning Corporation, 9 FMSHRC 1997
(Decenber 1987); Youghi ogheny & Chi o Coal Conpany, 9 FMSHRC 2007
(Decenber 1987); Secretary of Labor v. Rushton M ning Conpany, 10
FMSHRC 249 (March 1988). Referring to its prior holding in the
Emery M ning case, the Comm ssion stated as follows in

Youghi ogheny & Chi o, at 9 FMSHRC 2010:

We stated that whereas negligence is conduct that is
"inadvertent, " "thoughtless" or "inattentive,"
unwar r ant abl e conduct is conduct that is described as
"not justifiable" or "inexcusable.”™ Only by construing
unwarrantable failure by a mne operator as aggravated
conduct constituting nore that ordinary negligence, do
unwarrant abl e failure sanctions assune their intended
distinct place in the Act's enforcenment schene.

In Emery M ning, the Commi ssion explained the nmeaning of the
phrase "unwarrantable failure” as follows at 9 FMSHRC 2001

We first determ ne the ordinary nmeani ng of the phrase
"unwarrantable failure." "Unwarrantable" is defined as
"not justifiable" or "inexcusable." "Failure" is
defined as "negl ect of an assigned, expected, or
appropriate action." Webster's Third New Internationa
Di ctionary (Unabridged) 2514, 814 (1971) ("Webster's").
Conparatively, negligence is the failure to use such
care as a reasonably prudent and careful person would
use and is characterized by "inadvertence,"

"t hought |l essness,"” and "inattention." Black's Law
Dictionary 930-31 (5th ed. 1979). Conduct that is not
justifiable and i nexcusable is the result of nobre than
i nadvertence, thought-Ilessness, or inattention. * * *

I n Youghi ogheny & Ohi o Coal Conpany, 10 FMSHRC 603 ( May
1988), the Conmission, citing UMM v. Kleppe, 532 F.2d 1403 (D.C
Cir. 1976), cert. denied sub nom Bitum nous Coal Operators
Assn., Inc., v. Kl eppe, 429 U S. 1405, held that while a
significant and substantial finding is a prerequisite for the
i ssuance of a section 104(d)(1) citation, there is no such
requi renent for the issuance of a section 104(d) (1) order.
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The petitioner's posthearing brief does not address in any detali
t he al |l eged unwarrantabl e nature of the section 104(d) (1)
citation and order, or the significant and substantial findings
made by the inspector. The brief is |linited to the follow ng
argument nmade at page 5:

The failure of the respondent to obtain mner training
and file mne plans prior to beginning mning was
likely to result in a fatality because of the use of
expl osi ves, because of the |ack of inspection of

equi pnment used on the site, and because of the failure
to use basic safety equi pmrent such as hard hats and
steel toe shoes on the site. The requirenment of
training and the filing of pre-mning plans are basic
to the Federal M ne Safety regulatory scheme. All ow ng
respondent to mine without neeting these requirenents
defeats the purpose of the Act.

During the direct questioning and cross-exam nation of
I nspector Sorke, no testinony was forthcoming with respect to his
unwarrantabl e failure and significant and substantial findings,
and he offered no reasons for making these findi ngs. However
when called in rebuttal by the petitioner, and after questions
fromthe court, M. Sorke testified as follows with respect to
the hazard ramifications in connection with the lack of training
(Tr. 225-227):

Most people that do strip mning, and we've heard them
say they are not strip mners, they are not mners,
have had initial training for new hired mners.

This alerts themto the dangers involved in this work
and what could happen to themduring this type of work,
considering the type of machinery they use, the area,
and the control that they nust provide for the

hi ghwal | , and all those type things.

Q If you assunme that this is a nmining operation, what
ki nd of hazards woul d you expect themto be exposed to
that the training would help themin dealing w th?

A. Falling material fromthe highwall; as far as
knowi ng how to properly operate the equi pment, know ng
t hat when you are using equi pnent
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on el evated roadways and everything that bernms are required; to
keep over travel of equipnent; knowi ng the condition the
equi pnrent is supposed to be in, and that's supposed to be
handl ed; what records are required for that type of equipnent.

Q What about the use of explosives on that site?

A. Explosives are also in the training. Besides getting
the training that | nentioned, they get first aid
training for any accident that woul d happen on the
site. They al so would receive the proper use, handling
and storage of explosives. If there is a site, and this
one is not, where electricity is there, they get the
proper use of electricity on a certain installation.

There are several areas; you know, | could keep going
on and on and tell you things that they would get in
training that just the normal construction worker has
no i dea about.

Q What kind of accidents would you foresee as a result
of working without that mner training?

A. Anytine that MSHA finds an untrai ned person, we
consider hima hazard to hinself and everybody there.

W feel |ike we could have a fatality, just from him
not knowi ng the things about safety at a mning
operation that he needs to know. That's why we al ways
i ssue the G Order and renmpove those people until they
have had this proper training.

When asked whether the withdrawal of the respondents
pursuant to section 104(g)(1l) of the Act was the reason for his
significant and substantial and unwarrantable failure findings,
I nspector Sorke responded as follows (Tr. 227):

Q Is that why you also found the unwarrantable and the
S &Sin this case?

A. Part of it. | nean, there's a lot of things that you
have to consider.
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Q What other factors did you consider in issuing the
unwar r ant abl e?

A. In an unwarrantable failure, you have to consider:
one, that it's either a violation of mandatory safety
heal th standards or not; and the two, the operator

ei ther knew or he shoul d have know - -

JUDGE KOUTRAS: |s that your position here that knew or
shoul d have known this was a mning operation?

THE W TNESS: Yes, sir. It's that they knew, not should
have known.

I nspector Sorke testified that after his initial contact
with the respondents at the mne site, he assuned that they would
take the necessary steps to obtain a legal mne plan and to
receive training, and he believed that the respondents may have
visited another MSHA inspector at his hone to obtain further
information in this regard (Tr. 54, 71). At the hearing, the
respondents who were present confirmed that they had made an
initial contact with an individual who conducts training for
anot her coal conpany, but that they did not avail thenselves of
any training (Tr. 223). Respondent Eugene MIls confirnmed that he
had a prelimnary talk with a "safety man" who was hired, and
when asked why he did not follow through with any training, he
responded "everyone we tal ked to kept advising this and that. W
were confused, and didn't know which way to go. Finally, we cane
to the point that we sought |egal help" (Tr. 224).

I nspector Sorke confirmed that while it is conmon for mne
operators who are operating illegal mnes to have someone serving
"in the woods as a watch-out," he was not aware of any such
activity at the site in question. He also confirnmed that in such
situations, both he and the operator are apprehensive and scared,
and that in this case the individuals at the site did not flee or
attenpt to run fromthe site (Tr. 215-217). M. Sorke confirmed
t hat al t hough several other individuals present at the scene
"scattered and wal ked off the hill,"” the three named respondents
stayed (Tr. 52). He also confirmed that no harsh words were
spoken, and that he engaged in a friendly conversation with the
respondents (Tr. 54). Further, aside fromthe inspector's
mentioning the fact that one of his fellow inspectors had seen
M. Harris on "sone jobs," he had no
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know edge that any of the respondents had any previ ous connection
with any other mining activities, or had ever been enployed in
coal mning (Tr. 103-104).

After careful review and consideration of all of the
evi dence in these proceedings, | cannot conclude that it supports
any finding or conclusion that the violation concerning the
respondent's failure to receive new mner training (48.25(a)), or
the violation for the failure to submit a mning training plan
(48.23(a)(3)), constitute unwarrantable failure violations.
find no aggravated conduct on the part of the respondents, and
the inspector confirmed that he based his findings in this regard
on the fact that the respondent "knew or should have known" about
the cited training regulations in question. Further, although the
i nspector marked the citation and order "high negligence," no
testi mony was forthcom ng as why he did this, other than his
belief that the respondent "knew' about the training regul ations.
Under the circunstances, the inspector's unwarrantable failure
findi ngs ARE REJECTED AND VACATED.

Wth respect to the inspector's significant and substantia
finding relating to the |ack of new m ner training (48.25(a)),
there is no credi ble evidence showi ng that any of the individuals
who were engaged in the mning activity in question were
experienced mners, or had ever worked in the mning industry.

Al t hough none of the other respondents testified in this case,
Eugene MI1ls confirned that he had never before been involved in
any coal mning (Tr. 191).

The intent of the new miner training regulations is to
prompte mne safety by insuring that new mners are trained in a
nunber of safety and health subjects, including their new work
envi ronnent, ground control, working around highwal |s, hazard
recognition, and the use of explosives in a nmning environnment.
In enacting the w thdrawal provisions for untrained mners
pursuant to section 104(g)(1) of the Act, Congress recognized and
decl ared that untrained miners are hazards to thenselves and to
others, and |I conclude and find that the failure of new mners to
receive the requisite training pursuant to the Act and MSHA' s
regulations is in itself a safety hazard.

The evidence in this case establishes that the respondents
had engaged in work activities connected with the blasting and
renoval of overburden, the use of a bulldozer and ot her
equi prent, and the establishnent of a 60 foot highwall. M. MIllIs
confirmed that explosives were used to shoot the slate, stone,
and | arge rocks fromthe highwall (Tr. 193). He al so confirned
that the equi pnent was used to renove the overburden and push it
over the steep hill and enbankment adjacent to the site.
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Under these circunstances, | conclude and find that the

i ndi vidual s in question were exposed to the hazards inherent in
such activities, and that their lack of training presented a
reasonabl e |ikelihood of an injury or accident of a reasonably
serious nature. Accordingly, | conclude and find that the
violation was significant and substantial, and the inspector's
finding in this regard | S AFFI RVED.

Wth regard to the inspector's significant and substantia
finding in connection with the violation for the failure to file
a training plan (48.23(a)(3)), | find no credible probative
evi dence to establish that the failure to file such a plan
constituted a significant and substantial violation. The
i nspector’'s testinmony in this case is totally |lacking in any
support for such a finding. Under the circunstances, the
i nspector's finding | S REJECTED AND VACATED

In view of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons, including
the rejection of the inspector's unwarrantable failure findings,
section 104(d)(1) Order No. 3004623, Novenber 16, 1987, citing a
violation of 30 C.F. R [ 48.25(a), for the failure to provide
training for the three cited individuals in question is nodified
to a section 104(a) citation, with "S&S" findings, and IT IS
AFF| RVED.

Section 104(d)(1) Order No. 3004624, Novenmber 16, 1987,
citing a violation of 30 CF. R 0 48.23(a)(3), for the failure to
subnmit a mine training plan is nodified to a section 104(a)
citation, with non-"S&S" findings, and I T | S AFFI RMED

Section 104(a) non-"S&S" Citation No. 3004621, Novemnber 16,
1987, citing a violation of 30 CF. R 0O 41.10, for failing to
submt the required mne legal identity report IS AFFI RMED AS
| SSUED.

Si ze of Business and Effect of Civil Penalty Assessnent on the
Respondent's Ability to Continue in Business

The evi dence establishes that the mining operation in
question was very small and was bei ng operated by three
i ndi vi dual s of unknown neans and assets. The site has been cl osed
by the State of Kentucky and MSHA's wit hdrawal orders. The
i ndi viduals in question submtted no evidence with respect to the
i mpact of any civil penalty assessnents on their ability to pay
such assessnents. Aside from M. Eugene MIls, who testified in
this case, there is no information as to whether or not the other
i ndi vi dual s engaged in the mining activity in question are
gai nfully enpl oyed. Absent any evidence to the contrary, |
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cannot conclude that the paynent of the civil penalty assessnents
will adversely affect the respondents.

Hi story of Prior Violations

The respondent has no known history of prior violations.
Gravity

Wth the exception of the new nminer training violation, |
conclude and find that the remaining two violations were
non-serious. Wth respect to the new mner training violation, |
conclude and find that it was serious.
Negl i gence

In view of my unwarrantable failure findings, |I conclude and
find that all of the violations which have been affirned in these
proceedi ngs resulted fromthe respondent's failure to exercise
reasonabl e care, and that this constitutes ordinary negligence.

Good Faith Conpliance

As stated above, the mne site in question is closed, and
the violations remai n unabat ed because of that closure. Under the

ci rcunstances, | cannot conclude that the respondents have abated
the violations in good faith, and | doubt very much that they
wi || have any opportunity to do so, or ever intend to.

Civil Penalty Assessnents

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons, and
taking into account the requirenments of section 110(i) of the
Act, | conclude and find that the following civil penalty
assessnments for the violations which have been affirnmed are
reasonabl e and appropriate in the circunstances of these
proceedi ngs:

Docket No. KENT 88-104
Citation No. Dat e 30 C.F.R Section Assessnent

3004621 11/ 16/ 87 41. 10 $ 20
3004624 11/ 16/ 87 48. 23(a) (3) $ 20
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Docket No. KENT 88-159

Citation No. Dat e 30 CF.R Section Assessnent
3004623 11/ 16/ 87 48. 25(a) $150
ORDER

The respondent |'S ORDERED to pay civil penalty assessnents
in the ampbunts shown above within thirty (30) days of the date of
t hese deci sions. Upon receipt of payment by the petitioner, this
matter is dism ssed.

CGeorge A. Koutras
Adm ni strative Law Judge



